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I. Statement of Basis for Legal Enforcement Action

The following case consists of a private pilot, Mr. Dean Herbert Sawyer, serving as a 
required flight crew member while carrying passengers, with an expired medical 
certificate, of an unairworthy civil aircraft.

On July 8, 2019, Inspectors from the Portland Flight Standards Office initiated an 
investigation following the notification of an aircraft accident regarding N9919V, Cessna 
172M, S/N 17264555. The investigation revealed that Mr. Dean Herbert Sawyer, holder 
of private pilot certificate number 3680615, intentionally operated a civil aircraft with 
passengers, which had not been inspected within the last 12 calendar months, while not 
having had a flight review with in the last 24 calendar months and while not having a 
current medical certificate.

 

 
 

 
 

 

II. Statement of Case (Facts)

Regulation(s) or statute(s) Violated:
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Facts:

On July 8, 2019, Mr. Dean Herbert Sawyer operated N9919V in a manner that resulted in 
an accident at Yaquina Beach in Newport, OR. (IOP 1) Inspector Darren K. Vaughn of 
the Portland Flight Standards Office was notified and assigned to investigate the accident. 

Brenda Reasoner and her 7 year old grandson were passengers on N9919V during the
July 8, 2019 flight that resulted in an accident. (IOP 2)

Mr. Sawyer is the holder of Private Pilot Certificate Number 3680615. (IOP 3)(IOP 4)

Mr. Sawyer is the registered owner of Cessna Aircraft, model 172M, registration number 
N9919V, serial number 17264555. (IOP 5)(IOP 2 )

Mr. Sawyer’s last application for a Third Class Medical Certificate (FF-2848642) was
dated July 30, 2004, which expired on July 31, 2006. (IOP 4)(IOP )

On July 9, 2019, Inspector Vaughn conducted a phone interview with Mr. Sawyer (IOP 
2), after visiting the scene of the accident. During the interview Mr. Sawyer stated the
following: 

Mr. Sawyer departed Newport, OR with a half tank of fuel in each tank about
3:30 pm with Brenda Reasoner and her 7 year old grandson for a whale
watching flight.
After viewing whales, they headed back toward the Newport airport and about
Nye Beach, the engine began to surge between 2100 and 2600 RPM.
The surge got progressively worse and the aircraft was losing altitude, so Mr.
Sawyer decided to land in the dunes.
Mr. Sawyer stated to Inspector Vaughn that plane had not had an annual
inspection for about 3 years (IOP ), he did not have a Biennial Flight Review
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(BFR) for about 5 to 6 years, and he did not have a current medical for about
8 years (IOP ).

5. Mr. Sawyer is on medication to control high blood pressure.

On July 10, 2019, Inspector Vaughn issued a Pilot’s Bill of Rights (PBR) to Mr. Sawyer. 
(IOP )

A Letter of Investigation date July 16, 2019, Privacy Notice and Compliance Philosophy
and Airman Rights brochure (IOP ) was sent to Mr. Sawyer from Inspector
Christopher Mazurkiewicz of the Portland Flight Standards Office and received by Kay 
Keady on July 22, 2019. (IOP 1 )

A letter dated August 8, 2019, sent via email from Mr. Michael F. Van Hoomissen, was
received by Inspector Mazurkiewicz on August 5, 2019 (IOP 1 ). The letter from Mr.
Van Hoomissen stated the following: 

1. Mr. Van Hoomissen represents Dean Herbert Sawyer.
2. Mr. Sawyer received the letter dated July 16, 2019 and the Pilot’s Bill of

Rights.
3. Mr. Sawyer will voluntary surrender his pilot and medical certificates.

A letter dated July 23, 2019, was sent to Mr. Sawyer requesting N9919V’s maintenance
records and pilot records (IOP 1 ), and received by Dawn Smalley July 29, 2019 (IOP
1 ).

On August 8, 2019, Inspector Mazurkiewicz received via mail, Mr. Sawyer’s Pilot
Certificate and a note stating that Mr. Sawyer did not have a current medical. (IOP 1 )

On August 13, 2019, Mr. Van Hoomissen requested via email that Inspector 
Mazurkiewicz hold the pilot certificate of Mr. Sawyer pending further instructions which 
will be forthcoming pending resolution of the investigation and enforcement action. (IOP
1 )

On August 28, 2019, Inspector Vaughn received copies of Aircraft and Maintenance 
Records for N9919V, via mail, from Mr. Sawyer (IOP )(IOP 1 ). The records showed
the following: 

1. A standard Airworthiness certificate was issued December 20, 1974. (IOP ,
Page 2)(IOP 2 )
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Performance of an Annual inspection was last documented on June 2, 2015 at
Tach Time: 4527.3 and Airframe Total Time: 4527.3. (IOP , Pages 51 and
52)
Performance of AD 2011-10-09 was last documented on June 2, 2015 at Tach
Time: 4527.3 and Airframe Total Time: 4527.3. (IOP , Pages 51 and 52)
Performance of 91.207(d) Emergency Locator Transmitter (ELT) inspection
was last documented on June 2, 2015 at Tach Time: 4527.3 and Airframe
Total Time: 4527.3 and the ELT battery is documented as due replacement by
August 2017. (IOP , Pages 51 and 52)(IOP 2 )(IOP 2 )

A letter dated September 4, 2019, was sent to Mr. Sawyer returning his Private Pilot 
Certificate and refusing his voluntary surrender to avoid certificate action or legal
enforcement action. (IOP 1 ) The letter and certificate were signed for and received on 
9/9/2019. (IOP 1 )

The aircraft Tach Time at the time of the accident is 4530.0 (IOP ) and the Hobbs
Time was 5289.7. (IOP 2 )

Flight records for N9919V (IOP 2 ) found by Inspector Vaughn, at the scene of the
accident, show Mr. Sawyer operated N9919V 3 times for a total of 1.9 hours (IOP 2 ,
Page 2), since June 2016, when the last Annual inspection expired. (IOP , Pages 51
and 52)

The Aircraft Registration (AC Form 8050-3), located in the aircraft, was issued on 
September 28, 2006 and expired on September 30, 2012. N9919V has a current
registration on file. (IOP 5)(IOP 2 )

Factors Affecting Sanction

Severity Level
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ITEMS OF PROOF

IOP #1

IOP #2

IOP #3

IOP #4

IOP #5

IOP #6

IOP #7

IOP #8

IOP #9

IOP #10 

IOP #11 

IOP #12 

IOP #13 

Picture of N9919V, at the scene of the accident at Yaquina Beach in
Newport, OR. Photograph taken by Inspector Darren Vaughn on 7/9/2019. 

Record of Conversation by Inspector Darren Vaughn, with Dean Herbert 
Sawyer, dated 7/9/2019. 

Blue Ribbon Package pertaining to the airman certification records for
Dean Herbert Sawyer. Package obtained by Inspector Christopher 
Mazurkiewicz.

MSAT-A Airman Information pertaining to Dean Herbert Sawyer. Report 
produced by Inspector Darren Vaughn.

Blue Ribbon Package pertaining to Cessna Aircraft, Model 172M, serial 
number 17264555, registration number N9919V. Package obtained by 
Inspector Christopher Mazurkiewicz. 

Blue Ribbon Package pertaining to official medical records of Dean
Herbert Sawyer. Package obtained by Inspector Christopher
Mazurkiewicz.

Copy of N9919V Airframe Log Book provided by Dean Herbert Sawyer.

Pilots Bill of Rights provided by Inspector Darren Vaughn to Dean 
Herbert Sawyer.

Letter of Investigation (LOI) dated 7/16/2019 with Privacy Notice and 
Compliance Philosophy and Airman Rights brochure sent to Dean Herbert 
Sawyer.

Delivery Notification Receipt for LOI dated 7/16/2019. 

Letter from Michael F. Van Hoomissen. 

Letter of Request for maintenance records for N9919V and pilot records
for Dean Herbert Sawyer from Inspector Darren Vaughn. 

Delivery Notification Receipt for Records Request letter dated 7/23/2019. 
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IOP #15 

Copy of Dean Herbert Sawyers Pilot Certificate and note received via mail 
by Inspector Christopher Mazurkiewicz.

IOP #16 

Email from Michael F. Van Hoomissen to Inspector Christopher 
Mazurkiewicz authorizing to hold Dean Herbert Sawyer’s pilot certificate.

IOP #17 

Copy of N9919V Engine Log Book provided by Dean Herbert Sawyer. 

IOP #18 

Voluntary Surrender Refusal letter sent to Dean Herbert Sawyer from 
Inspector Christopher Mazurkiewicz. 

IOP #19 

Delivery Notification Receipt for Voluntary Surrender Refusal letter dated 
9/4/2019. 

IOP #20 

Picture taken by Inspector Darren Vaughn of N9919V Tachometer at the 
scene of the accident.

IOP #21 

Picture taken by Inspector Darren Vaughn of N9919V Hobbs Meter at the 
scene of the accident.

IOP #22 

Pictures taken by Inspector Darren Vaughn, at the scene of the accident, of 
the flight records for N9919V, found in the aircraft. 

IOP #23 

Picture taken by Inspector Darren Vaughn, at the scene of the accident, of 
the registration (AC Form 8050-3) present in N9919V. 

IOP #24 

Photo taken by Inspector Darren Vaughn, at the scene of the accident, of 
Airworthiness Certificate FAA Form 8100-2 for N9919V. 

IOP #25 

Photo taken by Inspector Darren Vaughn, at the scene of the accident, of 
the ELT installed in N9919V. 

Photo taken by Inspector Darren Vaughn, at the scene of the accident, of 
the ELT Battery due date placard.







July 9, 2019

get in a an airplane with him because he's not good."  

I asked Mr. Sawyer when his last medical was and he said about 8 years ago. He also said 
he doesn't have any major medical issues but he does have high blood pressure that is under 
control with medication. He stated "It's been on my list to do but I just haven't done it." 

I asked again where the maintenance records for the aircraft are located and he said the 
aircraft log is in the left front pouch in the aircraft. He said that the aircraft paperwork and 
logs were "blowing all across the beach after the accident." He said that if the log(s) were 
not in the aircraft they are probably in his hangar. 

  
  
  
  
Darren K. Vaughn 
Aviation Safety Inspector

07/10
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I, Christopher Mazurkiewicz certify that this is a true and complete copy, scan or 
duplicate of: The Airframe Maintenance Log Books for N9919V, submitted by Dean 
Herbert Sawyer and received by Inspector Darren Vaughn on August 28, 2019. 

Signature:

Office: NM09

CHRISTOPHER L 
MAZURKIEWICZ

Digitally signed by 
CHRISTOPHER L MAZURKIEWICZ 
Date: 2019.09.27 13:45:31 -07'00'











































































































NOTIFICATION OF INVESTIGATION UNDER THE PILOT’S BILL OF 
RIGHTS 

In accordance with the Pilot’s Bill of Rights, the FAA is informing you that: 
The nature of this investigation is to determine __________________

____________________________________________ in violation of the Federal
Aviation Regulations, and if so, what, if any, enforcement action should be taken.

Any response by you to an inquiry by a representative of the FAA Administrator in
connection with this investigation may be used as evidence against you.

If this investigation results in a subsequent legal enforcement action against your
Airman Certificate, rating, or inspection authorization, the releasable portions of the
Administrator’s investigative report will be made available to you upon your written
request addressed to the FAA’s legal counsel handling the enforcement action.

If applicable to the matter for which you are under investigation, you are entitled to
access air traffic data in the possession of the FAA that would facilitate your ability to
productively participate in a proceeding relating to this investigation. You are also
entitled to obtain air traffic data in the possession of a government contractor providing
operational services to the FAA (e.g., contract control towers and flight service stations)
provided that you submit a request to the Administrator that describes the facility at
which such information is located and you identify the date on which such information
was generated. During this investigation, you may submit your request to access or
obtain air traffic data as described in this notification by contacting me at the address
and telephone number noted in this letter. Because air traffic data is routinely destroyed
or disposed of in the ordinary course of business, it is important that you submit your
request for such data as soon as possible.

_____________________________________

Date:

Telephone: 

Address: 
Portland FSDO 
3180 NE Century Blvd. 
Hillsboro, OR 97124 

operation of an 
rw hy a ra  a   be  

Darren K. Vaughn, Aviation Safety Inspector

07/10/2019

(503) 615-3244

operation of an 
unairworthy aircraft may have been 



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF PBR WRITTEN NOTIFICATION 

I acknowledge that I received the Pilot’s Bill of Rights Written Notification of 
Investigation.  

______________________________________ DATE:      
Name (Print)        MM/DD/YYYY

    
Signature of Airman: _________________________________________

* * * * *

To Be Completed by the FAA Inspector 

I have personally delivered the Written Notification under the PBR to 

______________________________________ on     , 
[print name of the individual]    MM/DD/YYYY

including notification that the nature of this investigation is to determine whether he/she 

____________________________________________________________________
[enter nature of investigation stated in item 1) of notification provided]  

in violation of 14 CFR, and if so, what, if any, enforcement action should be taken. 

_____________________________________ FAA Office: _   
Name of FAA Inspector (Print)

_____________________________________
Signature of FAA Inspector 



















MICHAEL  F.  VAN  HOOMISSEN 
Adm tted to Pract ce n          ATTORNEY  AT  LAW          Te ephone     503 221 1529 

Oregon               R V ERA PLAZA, SU E 319                    Facs m e       503 221 6222 
Washington                1618  S W  1S   AVENUE 

PORTLAND   OREGON  97201 
 

Email mvanhoom@me com 
www vanhoomissenlaw com 

 
 

 
August 8, 2019 

 
 
SENT VIA EMAIL 
 
Christopher Mazurkiewicz 
Aviation Safety Inspector 
Flight Standards District Office 
3180 NE Century Blvd 
Hillsboro, OR 97124 
Tel 503-615-3227; Fax 503-615-3300 
Email: christopher.mazurkiewicz@faa.gov 
 
 Re:  Dean Herbert Sawyer; EIR 2019NM090023 
 
Dear Chris: 
 
 Thanks for returning my call about your email address this 
morning.  As discussed last week, I represent Dean Herbert 
Sawyer who has received your July 16, 2019 letter and Pilot Bill 
of Rights.  His passenger on the incident flight may be suing 
Dean and so I am suggesting that Dean not be answering a lot of 
questions about the incident.  However, Dean understands your 
role and he wants to cooperate with the FAA.  So, though you 
didn’t ask him to do so, Dean will voluntarily surrender his 
pilot and medical certificates by mailing them to you the above 
address under separate cover.  Look for those.  This may obviate 
the need for a lot of additional questions and time spent by 
your office and mine.  

Very truly yours, 
 
      /s/ Michael F. Van Hoomissen 
 
      Michael F. Van Hoomissen 
  
  
 













I, Christopher Mazurkiewicz certify that this is a true and complete copy, scan or 
duplicate of: The Engine Maintenance Log Books for Lycoming 0-320-E2D, s/n L-
48798-27A, installed in N9919V, submitted by Dean Herbert Sawyer and received by 
Inspector Darren Vaughn on August 28, 2019. 

Signature:

Office: NM09























































































































































































�

%\� BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB
%HQMDPLQ 0� %RUHOOL� (VT�
(QIRUFHPHQW 'LYLVLRQ� 0LGZHVW 7HDP
���� (DVW 'HYRQ $YHQXH
'HV 3ODLQHV� ,/ �����
(PDLO� EHQMDPLQ�ERUHOOL#IDD�JRY
7HOHSKRQH� ����� �������� �PDLQ�

����� �������� �GLUHFW�
)D[� ����� ��������


















































